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SEPTEMBER 20, 1976 

MONDAY 

MR. NESSEN: We want to hur1y on because there 
is this Presidential meeting with the Farm Credit group 
starting in about 25 or 27 minutes. 

On the trip to Philadelphia f~r the debate, 
the President will leave for Philadelpt.la about midday on 
Thursday. After the debate, the President will remain 
in Philadelphia overnight. 

Q Where? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't have the place to announce 
for you yet. Not the Bellevue-Stratford. That is for the 
press. (Laughter) That is a joke. 

He will have some activities in the Philadelphia 
area on Friday morning and will return to Washington about 
midday on Friday, the 24th. 

The sign-up for the Philadelphia trip, and also 
for the Southern trip -- we are going to have to put a 
deadline on the sign-up time. The deadline for the 
Philadelphia trip is tomorrow at noon and the reason 
for that is that, as you know, the League of Women Voters 
has designated a certain number of seats in the audience. 
Even thought you won't be seen on television, you can still 
sit there. There is a limited number and we need to know 
how many people are signing up for the trip and how many 
want to sit in the audience by noon tomorrow. 

The choices are to sit in the audience and not 
be able to leave or move or anything until after the 
debate is over or to stay at the Ben Franklin Hotel in the 
press room set up by the League of Women Voters, which is a 
half a block away, and watch it all on TV and have filing 
facilities, and so on, as the debate goes on. 

So, those of you who want to go to Philadelphia, 
you can sign up by noon tomorrow, and also indicate whether 
you want to sit in the audience debate or watch it from 
the Ben Franklin filing center. 

Q Indicate that.on the sign-up list? 

'MR. NESSEN: Yes. 
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Q Why does the White House object to the 
networks showing the audience? 

MR. NESSEN: This is a proposal of the League 
of Women Voters, which Governor Carter's people and 
we support. 

Q Yes, but the League of Women Voters now 
says they are neutral on this and it is being put back 
to both the President and Mr. Carter. 

MR. NESSEN: As I say, it was the League of 
Women Voters' view and we support it and Governor Carter's 
people support it and also, apparently, so does -- I think 
basically, our position is the same position taken by 
Arthur Taylor, the president of CBS, less than a month 
ago. In fact, we have sent a reply to Mr. Salant's 
telegram and in the reply to Mr. Salant's telegram, we 
quote the statement by the CBS president, Arthur Taylor, 
on August 26th to the Chairman of the Senate and House 
Subcommittees on Communications when he raised the 
question and said that those arranging the debates should 
face up to the question of, "Is there a substantial 
danger that a live audience in an informal setting, however 
well-intentioned and however nonpartisan in theory that 
audience might be, could provide distractions from the 
substance of the debate or give supporting or negative 
emphasis to one participant or another?u 

Those are Arthur Taylor's concerns, the 
president of CBS. We share them and Governor Carter's 
people share them, and that is why we have taken this 
position. 

The other deadline for signing up is Wednesday 
at 5:00 p.m., which is the deadline for signing up for the 
Southern trip, and the reason for having that deadline 
is that we need to know how many people are going to go 
on the boat, and so forth. So, those are ·the two deadlines 
for the trip. 

Q Ron, where is Kenner, Louisiana? What 
is it near? 

MR. NESSEN: It is North of New Orleans on 
the Mississippi River but 

Q We know that, but what town is it near? 

MR. CARLSON: Kenner-New Orleans is the main 
airport there. 

Q Kenner? Then, how long will he be on the 
boat? 
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MR. NESSEN: Six hours, from about 10:00 in the 
morning until about 4:00 in the afternoon. 

Here is our Louisiana expert, Ed Poe. 

Q Kenner is the New Orleans International 
Airport. It is above the city, on the river, up about 
15 miles from Canal Street, 15-1/2 miles from 
Bourbon Street. (Laughter) 

MR. NESSEN: Can't you be a little more precise 
than that, Ed? (Laughter) 

Q Would he be seeing any people, any 
PO?Ulation,much along this area? 

MR. NESSEN: He will motorcade from the airport 
further north on the river where he will board the boat 
and then will come south on the river for about six hours. 

Q What is the name of the boat, Ron? 

MR. NESSEN: The name of the boat is the 
NATCHEZ. 

Q Ron, can you tell us how this educational 
fellow happened to drop by today? 

MR. NESSEN: He asked for a chance to come in and 
talk to the President. 

Q That is not what he said. 

MR. NESSEN: What did he say? 

Q Did somebody on the staff ask him to come 
in and interpret the decision they endorsed? 

MR. NESSEN: Let me look into it. I am not 
too clear on the background myself, obviously. 

Those .are all the announcements I have. 

Q Can we go back to this point about the deb~te? 

MR. NESSEN: Sure. 

Q The White House is maintaining its opposition 
to --

Q Have we missed everything important? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know. We sent out a couple of 
people a couple of times. 

Q Is the White House maintaining its opposition 
to showing the audience during this debate? 
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MR. NESSEN: The White House and the Carter 
people agree with the League of Women Voters• position 
on the question of showing the audience during the 
debate and, as I said in the telegram replying to Mr. 
Salant's telegram, that position is laid out and Arthur 
Taylor, the president of CBS, is invoked as reflecting the 
same concerns that we have. 

Q ~0 initiated this rule, Ron? 

MR. NESSEN: As I say, the League of Women 
Voters, and we agree with it and accept it. 

Q We came in late. Is there a telegram? 
Did you send a telegram? 

MR. NESSEN: Dick Salant, the president of DBS 
News, sent a telegram to the President and Mike Duval 
has replied to his telegram. 

Q By telegram, or what? 

MR. NESSEN: By telegram, that is correct. 

Q Do you know what the telegram says? 

MR. NESSEN: I think we better wait for the 
telegram to get to Mr. Salant. 

Q Who did it go to? 

MR. NESSEN: It went to Mr. Salant. 

Q ~at is this about? 

MR. NESSEN: I am sorry. Well, I think some of 
you know and in fact, asked about on Saturday, a telegram 
that Dick Salant said he was sending to the President. He 
indeed did send a telegram to the President, and then Mike 
Duval responded to Dick Salant's telegram dated the 
20th, which would be today. I think what we will do is 
we will wait and make sure that this telegram has reached 
Dick Salant and then I think we can probably make it public. 

Q The League's officials are quoted as saying 
they are going to go back to the candidates to see whether 
they will yield on the issue of showing the audience. Will 
the White House yield or will you continue to insist on --

MR. NESSEN: As I understand, this began as the 
League proposal. We accept it. We support it. Carter's 
people accept it and support it, and that position 
has not changed any. 
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Q I don't think that answers my question. Will 
the White House continue to take this position or will you 
permit televising the audience? 

MR. NESSEN: We have the same concerns that Arthur 
Taylor, the president of CBS, had on the 26th and in 
fact, quote Arthur Taylor in the reply to Dick Salant's 
letter. The quotation from Arthur Taylor on August 26 was 
that -- and he made this statement to the Chairman of the 
Senate and House Subcommittees on Communications. 
He said that in putting the debates together and in the 
coverage plans for them the question arose, "Is there a 
substantial danger that a live audience in an informal 
setting, however well intentioned and however nonpartisan 
in theory that the audience might be, could provide 
distractions from the substance of the debate or give 
supporting or negative emphasis to one participant or 
another." 

That was Arthur Taylor, the president of CBS. 
In Mike Duval's response to Dick Salant's telegram, 
he does cite that as representing the same kind of --

Q Taylor said yes, that he could? I mean, 
in answer to the question? 

MR. NESSEN: Taylor just said, "This ia a question 
we must face when we put these together." 

Q Oh, "This is a question we must face," but 
he didn't concur that that was --

MR. NESSEN: I will need to look at the full 
text of his testimony. 

Q Ron, for those of us who were on the 
driveway, without quoting the telegram, is it essentially 
correct to assume that the White House agrees with the 
League of Women Voters that cutaway shots of the audience 
would be a distraction? Is that it? 

MR. NESSEN: That is, as I understand it, the 
League's position, which we accept and support, as do 
the Carter people. 

Q But the League has gone back on that 
position. 

MR. NESSEN: Well, I have not heard that and Mike 
had not mentioned it to me, and the telegram to Salant 
from Mike says, "We continue to support the position 
previously taken by representatives of the League of Women 
Voters, the President and Mr. Carter, concerning 
teleyision coverage of the debates." 
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Q 
I mean, is it 
League with? 
about? Does 
feeling? 

How important is this to the White House? 
something that you are just agreeing with the 
Is it something that you care a great deal 

it make a great difference? What is the 

MR. NESSEN: I think you have to go back, Lou, 
to the purpose of the debate. The purpose of the debate is 
to have the President and Governor Carter present their 
views on issues in depth to the American people. That 
is the purpose of the debates, and anything that could 
possible distract from that central purpose we are 
opposed to. 

Q Would you be in favor of eliminating the 
audience totally? 

MR. NESSEN: Phil, this has been a subject of 
negotiations for a long time with the League, Carter 
and the Ford people, and at this point, for me to start 
making off-the-cuff comments about a set of negotiations 
that have been g0ing on for a long time, I don't 
think is right. 

Q What about the issue of screening reporters 
and having veto right on both sides? 

MR. NESSEN: The panel, as I understand it, is 
being selected, chosen, by the League in consultation 
with the two candidates. 

Q Does consultation mean veto? 

MR. NESSEN: Consultation means consultation. 

Q Does it mean that either side has the 
right to say that that person is not acceptable? 

MR. NESSEN: It means consultation. 

Q Pardon me, I don't hear the answer. 

MR. NESSEN: Apparently, the names that the 
League considered came from the people, themselves. I 
understand about 20 reporters nominated themselves 
to be on the panel and the League, itself, I guess, 
had some names and the Carter people had some names. 

Q Let's not get an erroneous impression. 
About 20 or 24 reporters nominated themselves. The total 
panel consists of about 90, so I don't think you want to 
leave the impression that the bulk of the reporters nominated 
themselves. 

Q Did the White House present a list? 

Q You did say that both candidates nominated 
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MR. NESSEN: I would not call it nominated. I 
would say that the League asked for ideas and they came in 
from various sources, including the Carter people and the 
White House people. 

Q Did you put in a list? 

MR. NESSEN: The Carter people, the White House 
people, the reporters themselves, the League, and 
various 

Q Can we see your list? 

MR. NESSEN: No, I don't think so, Phil. 

Q Why not? 

Q On what basis did you choose your list? 

MR. NESSEN: From the very beginning of the 
negotiations of the League, both sides made a decision 
and promise that the negotiations would be conducted in 
private and that the details of them would not be a subject 
of leaks and 

Q This has become an open news matter now. 
It is no longer a private negotiation. I mean, there is a 
big debate going on as to the merits of all the issues 
involvedh terms of speaking. 

MR. NESSEN: I am telling you what our position is. 

Q How many reporters did the White House suggest? 

MR. NESSEN: It was agreed, Lou, that the details 
of all the negotiations and all the items would not be 
talked about, and we have kept our promise. 

Q Did you, in your selection for each --

MR. NESSEN: we don't have a selection, Phil. 

Q Well, your nomination, whatever you want 
to call it --

MR. NESSEN: I would not call them nominations. 

Q The list of names you submitted for each 
debater, did you go for the specialists of what that 
particular debate was supposed to be on? 

MR. NESSEN: Phil, the negotiators made a promise, 
which we intend to keep. 
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Q Will the moderator refer to the President 
as Mr. President, Mr. Ford or President Ford? What is 
the agreement on that? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know what the agreement 
is, if anything, on that. 

Q But that is a point, isn't it, as to how the 
moderator will address the two candidates, whether it is 
Mr. Carter, Governor Carter,and so on. 

MR. NESSEN: I had not heard of that as a matter. 

Q Has the second debate location been fixed? 

MR. NESSEN: If the League has picked San 
Francisco and announced it, it certainly 

Q I think the Carter people announced it. 

MR. NESSEN: The League is announcing the location 
of the debates. 

Q When will the panel be announced, Ron? 

MR. NESSEN: You have to ask the League, Bob. That 
is their decision. 

Q Can you tell whether the White House has 
objected to certain names brought up by the League of 
Women Voters and those names have consequently been 
withdrawn? 

MR. NESSEN: The choice is being made by the 
League in consultation with the two candidates. 

Q Did you object to any names that were on 
this list of about 90 

MR. NESSEN: Adam, we feel that we have an 
obligation to keep a promise that Mike made and we intend to. 

Q Ron, consultation in this case can only be 
interpreted as "Well, we really don't like that one, let's 
choose another one." You might not like to call that a 
veto,but whatever you want to call it, isn't that what 
consultation is? 

MR. NESSEN: That is consultation? 

Q Is that consultation, my definition? 

MR. NESSEN: No, don't play with my words, 
Marilyn. 
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Q Is that consultation? 

Q That is the way it sounds, Ron. 

Q How can you say it is so, without saying 
yes or no? 

MR. NESSEN: The panel is being selected by 
the League in consultation with the two candidates. 

Q Has it been selected? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know. Not the last time I 
heard. 

Q Nobody in this room is on your list; we 
can rest assured of that, can't we? (Laughter) 

Q It is very important to the White House 
everyone has said this -- that the debates should be 
directed at specific issues and the questions should 
be as careful as possible. Now, it does not seem to 
me you are giving anybody time to prepare any questions, 
if you are waiting this long. 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know what you mean by "you." 
The League is naming the names and selecting the people. 

Q In consultation with the League. 

Q Is the President taking part in the 
consultation process? 

MR. NESSEN: Is the President taking part in the 
consultation process? 

Q Yes. 

MR. NESSEN: The President's representatives are 
taking part in the consultation. 

Q I mean, do they confer with him or the 
assistants to him? 

MR. NESSEN: No, it is the aides who are the 
people who are involved in the negotiation. 
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Q There is a rumor -- it may be a base canard 
that the President suggested that no Washington correspondent 
be allowed on the panel. 

MR. NESSEN: That is a base canard. 

Q Is it a canard? 

MR. NESSEN: It is a canard. 

Q Ron, the question has come up here -- some-
body asked was there a group of reporters that 'YOU or 
anybody in connection with this, were dealing with, did 
you ask a group of reporters to submit names or was there 
any organization on the part of reporters for input? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know what the League did 
with the reporters and groups of reporters. We did not 
consult with any reporters or groups of reporters. 

Q There was no particular reporter's organ-
ization that was asked to submit names? 

MR. NESSEN: You have to ask the League. 

0 Ron, without getting into the business of 
veto, without using that word or eliminate or anything 
of that sort, is the process something like this: Where 
the League submits a list of names, the vJhi te House 
accepts a list of names and then submits a counterlist of 
names which may not be the same as the League submitted. 

MR. NESSEN: We are going to keep our promise, 
Bob, and not talk about the negotiations. 

Q Ron, yau have stated that the purpose of the 
debates is that the views of Mr. Carter and the President 
be made known. Yet, for eight months, with the suggestion 
of debate with Ronald Reagan, you said the President's 
views are already well known. 

Could you explain "'1hat appears to me to be a 
slight dilemma here? How did the President's views 
suddenly not get known well enough that they need to be 

MR. NESSEN: I think the President was asked 
that very question recently, and I will dig out his answer 
and show it to you. 

Q Has the League contacted you since this 
meetinp: l.dth the TV networks on Saturday? 

MR. NESSEN: Mike Duval is the \ihite House person 
conducting the negotiations. 
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Q Ron, would the White House be happier if 
the League simply selected the panelists without con­
sulting either candidate? 

MR. NESSEN: The League is selecting the 
panelists in consultation 

Q Without consultation? 

MR. NESSEN: This is what was agreed to by the 
two candidates' representatives. 

Q Come Thursday, will it be fair to say 
that there is a panel that has been acceptable "to both 
sides"? 

MR. NESSEN: No, I think you would have to write 
the panel was selected by the League in consultation 
with the two candidates. 

Q Ron, is there concern at the ~Thite House 
that this term "consultation" will be interpreted as a 
fixed panel and as a result the whole thing will be 
regarded as a farce? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know anybody who has said 
anything about that. 

Q There is no concern on the White House part 
that that may be the interpretation? 

MR. NESSEN: When the League announces its names, 
I think you ought to go to the three of your colleagues 
who are chosen by the League and say, "X, are you a fixed 
panel member? Do you feel that what you are taking part 
in is a farce and should the American public laugh it 
off?" Those are the three people you ought to direct 
your questions to, Rus~, your three colleagues. 

Q It is still fair to say that the panel was 
selected by President Ford, Jimmy Carter and the League 
of Women Voters. We don't need to add all those extra 
words like "in consultation with." We could just say 
that those three --

MR. NESSEN: The correct way to say it, Bob, 
is that the panel was selected by the League of Women 
Voters in consultation with the two candidates. 

Q That is just extraneous. It is just as 
fair to say selected by the 

Q Ron, I am not a semanticist. Could you 
explain why that is different from what some of the 
others suggest an interpretation of it is? 
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MR. NESSEN: If I wasted my whole morning around 
here digginp, up information so I can answer exactly one 
question in a half hour --

Q Everyone who has a card can cover a 
Presidential press conference. Would that be the 
criteria? 

MR. NESSEN: Criteria for what, Helen? 

Q For being on the panel. 

MR. NESSEN: You need to ask the League, which is 
selecting the panel. 

Q Since the President is pledged to an open 
Administration, do you think that the public should in 
any way know whether there was any veto possibility on 
both sides for the panel to be selected? It is a fairly 
important issue. 

MR. NESSEN: As I say, let's move away a 
moment from whatever has caused the agitation and go 
to the 

Q Could we try one more time, Ron? Is 
consultation something different from veto? 

MR. NESSEN: Consultation is consultation. 

Q Is it different from veto? 

MR. NESSEN: It is consultation. 

Q So, you won't say it is different from 
veto? 

MR. NESSEN: I am saying that the panel is being 
selected by the League of Women Voters in consultation 
with the two candidates. 

Q tfuy can't you say that is not a veto? 

MR. NESSEN: Why can't I say it is not an orange? 

Q ~Tell, you can say that, too, if you want, 
but would you answer the questioft? 

MR. NESSEN: Okay, it is time now to go to the 
Farm Credit Directors. 

Q Ron, will the President go any place else 
after he leaves New Orleans or before he comes back to 
the White House? 
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MR. NESSEN: After New Orleans the President 
will motor on Sunday from New Orleans to Mobile, 
Alabama, making stops along the Hay. That is Sunday. 
On Sunday night he will fly to t1iami and spend the night 
there. ~~onday morning he will deliver a speech to the 
International Association of Chiefs of Police and fly 
back --

0 '/lhere is that? 

HR. ~JESSEN: In ~Hami. 

Q Nhat about spending the nip;ht in Philadelphia? 

MR. NESSEN: I announced that before you came 
in. 

Q Ron, can you have another briefing? We 
have a lot of questions left over. 

Q Let's skip the Farm Bureau. 

Q We missed these announcements. 

MR, NESSEN: I sent people out twice, Jim. 

Q •could you have another briefing, Ron, 
right after this? 

MR. NESSEN: This t-ras the briefing, Les. 

0 T'·l'hen ~rill the next be? 

MR. NESSEN: 11:30 tomorrow morning. 

0 Could you discuss this consultation with 
us, ~on? 

Q Hhat Here the announcements, Ron? 

Q Can't you just run through the announcements? 

MR. NESSEN: We had 20 minutes, Ted. 

Q We had some other questions, Ron. 

Q Do you have a list of these people who are 
going to be in the Rose Garden? 

MR, NESSEN: Yes. 

Q May I see it, please? 

MR. NESSEN: Yes. 
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Q Can we have some other questions, Ron? 

HR. NESSE:t-J: Helen, I sent people outside to 
say --

Q Nobody came out, 

HR. NESSEN: Yes, they did. 

Q No, they did not. 

Q Ron, you really ~bt even with everybody. 

MR. NESSEN: We had a 30-minute briefing, Bob, 
and you asked the same question for 30 minutes. 

Q That is our prerogative. 

HR. NESSEN: You used your prerogative. 

0 Is there a limit of len~th of time? 

HP. NESSEN: l·7ould you like me to come back 
after the ceremony? 

0 Yes, 

H:R. NESSEN: Okay, 

THE PRESS: Thank you, Ron, 

(AT 11:55 A.M. EDT) 

* * * * 
12:25 P.M. EDT 

MR. NESSEN: Let me start all over again. 

Q Oh, no. 

MR. NESSEN: I do want to make two announcements, 
one,that the President will depart for Philade~phia at 
midday on Thursday. After the debate that night the 
President will overnight in Philadelphia and have activities 
in the Philadelphia area on Friday morning. I don't have 
those activities to give you right now, and he will return 
to Washington on Friday about midday on the 24th. I 
don't have yet ~1here the President is staying in Phila­
delphia, and I don't have those activities for Friday 
morning to give you yet. 
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The other announcement I had was the sign-up 
sheets for tvJO trips, one the Philadelphia trip and 
one the Southern trip. He would appreciate it if you could 
complete the sign-up for Philadelphia by noon tomorrow. 
The reason for that is that the League of v7oMen Voters 
has set aside a certain number of seats in the theater 
for the l'fhite House press corps and a certain number for 
the Carter press corps and a certain number for all 
others, and "t-Je v.rant to be able to make up our list 
and turn it in and that is ~,rhy we need to have your sip:n­
uo bv Tuesday at noon. 

What you should do is si~n up for the trip and 
also indicate whether you Hant to watch the debates from 
the audience in the theater or v.rhether you t-7ant to ~.ratch 
it in the press rool!l set up by the League of l•Tomen Voters 
at the Ben Franklin Hotel, about a half a block away, 
where there Hill be TV, telephones and typet,rri ters. 

The sign-up deadline for the Southern trip is 

Q l~ere t•Jill the pool be? 

MR. NESSEN: I think the pool in the traditional 
sense of a Presidential travel pool will seethe President 
up to the door of the theater and will not go inside 
with him. 

Q We have got to at least get in. 

~1R. NESSEN: 
the seats set aside 
I a~ sorry, that is 
the theater if they 
aside for the Fhite 

I nean, they may get in as part of 
for the \7hi te House press corps. 
right. They will certainly go into 
want to as part of those seats set 
House press coros. 

0 Ron, you mean there will be no pool with 
him at interMission time and things like that? 

HR. NESSEN: l.•Jhat intermission time? 

Q Well, I don't know. I just presumed we 
will have some little intermission time, maybe he wants to 
mop his brow or something. 

MR. NESSEN: No, I think it begins at 9:30 and 
goes straight on through without intermission. 

Q How many seats are in there, Ron, for the 
vJhite House press corps? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know. The number seems 
to fluctuate and I would rather not guess at the number. 
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Q How are you going to go about choosing 
them? 

MR. NESSEN: Hy own sense is -- and maybe I am 
wrong about it -- that we will not have enough people 
signin~ up to fill the seats because it strikes me a lot 
of people will want to watch it where they can file and 
also watch in a place where they can get the same impact 
as the home viewer. If we have more people signing up 
than we have seats for, we will come back and 

Q A lot of them want to be in the audience, 
Ron, so they can get on TV. 

HR. NESSEN: That is right, but you have to 
promise not to wave to your mother 't-7hen the camera comes 
around. 

Sign-up deadline for the Southern trip is Wednes-
day at 5:00 p.m. The reason that is a little early 
is so we can get some indication of how many people are 
going to be on the boat since the press is on the boat. 

I am told by Mike here that we can go ahead and 
release our telegram to Dick Salant and I think I will 
also release Dick Salant's telegram to President Ford 
so why don't we ~et busy Xeroxing these? 

0 This wire was sent to Salant, not to the 
League? 

MR. NESSEN: Hike Duval responded to a Dick 
Salant telegram to the President. 

Q I said he sent the wire to the League but 
that was wrong. 

MR. NESSEN: That is right, Dick Salant sent a 
telegram in here on Saturday addressed to the President, 
which some of you asked about, and Mike Duval is replying 
on behalf of the President to Dick Salant. 

Q Ron, your office did not have that list of 
the people in the Rose Garden a few minutes ago. 

MR. NESSEN: Bill Baroody helped to arrange that 
event and Jan told me that as soon as Baroody gets back 
to his office he will pull the list. 

We now have it. 

Q Ron, on another issue, there is a report that 
you and,! think,Mr. Kavandish are having a terrific 
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MR. NESSEN: Kavandish? 

Q -- misunderstanding about certain leaks in 
the Press Office. I just wonder, is there any truth to 
this report or not? 

MR. NESSEN: No,there is not. 

Q No truth at all? 

MR. NESSEN: That is correct. 

There is no Mr. Kavandish here, anyhow. 

Q I am sorry if I got the wrong .name. It 
was Anderson's column. Was that report wrong that you 
are having a problem with somebody? I am sorry if I got 
the name wrong. 

MR. NESSEN: The report that I am having a 
problem with somebody is wrong. 

Q No problem? 

Q Was there anything between you and Mr. 
Cavanaugh, any memos, on a question of a leak here in 
the office? 

MR. NESSEN: I am not going to discuss alleged 
leaked memos. 

Q Was there any discussion between you and 
Mr. Cavanaugh as to the way you handled the press? 

MR. NESSEN: I think that is between me and Mr. 
Cavanaugh. 

Q It is sort of public right now; it has already 
come out in the press. It is pretty wide open now·and we 
just thought we ought to ask you. It sounded to me like 
you were doing pretty good for yourself. 

MR. NESSEN: Well, thank you. 

Q Were you? 

MR. NESSEN: That is an internal matter, Sarah, 
that I will handle. 

Q Sure it is an internal matter, but it 
is wide open now. 

Q It is an open Administration. 

MR. NESSEN: Semi-open. 
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Q There is some foundation but it is not 
completely figurative'? 

Q It is not completely false, then, Ron? 

MR. NESSEN: I am not going to talk about an 
internal matter. 

Q Ron, it seemed to be sort of important 
because it gave an indication of how the White House 
administrative staff, particularly the deputy to the 
Chief of Staff of the President, feels toward letting 
information get out to the press, so that seemed rather 
important. 

MR. NESSEN: I am not going to talk about an 
internal matter. 

Ted? 

Q Can I get at the business of the response 
to the Carter tax statement? 

MR. NESSEN: Yes. 

Q What is the basis for the action, if that is 
the right word? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't accept your word "action." 

Q All right, what is the basis for the 

MR. NESSEN: There are a number of people when 
they read the AP wire story were, as they said on 
Saturday, incredulous or surprised or taken aback about 
this and felt that .they wanted to speak out on it. 

Q Was that the wire story that quoted him as 
saying that he would shift the burden toward those who have 
higher incomes and reduce the income tax on the lower 
income tax payers? 

MR. NESSEN: That is where the quote begins and 
then the question is, "What do you mean when you say 
'shift the burden'?" Then the answer is, "That means 
people who have a higher income would pay for taxes at 
a certain level." Question: "In dollar figures, what are 
you thinking of as higher?" That is the question that 
comes after he has said that means people who have higher 
income would pay more taxes at a certain level. 

"In dollar figures, what are you thinking of as 
higher?" 

"I don't know. I would take the mean or median 
level of income and anything above this would be higher 
and anything below that would be lower." 
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Now, the statistical abstract put out by the 
Bureau of Census for the last full year in which this 
was measured, which was 1974, finds that median income 
in the United States is $12,836 per family. The mean 
income, which is a slightly higher one, is $13,622. 

So, I would take the mean -- $13,622 -- or 
median -- $12,836 -- level of income and anything above 
this would be higher and anybody below this would be 
lower. 

Those are the words. 

Q The point is, were you aware of -- was this 
before or after AP moved to fix the correction, saying 
that it omitted the words "and middle income," which 
makes the Carter quote read those who have the higher in­
comes -- that he would shift the burden •toward those who 
have the higher incomes and reduce the income tax on 
the lower income and middle income tax payer." 

MR. NESSEN: That is correct, and it is totally 
irrelevant because the portions we are talking about is 
the sentence that says, "I would take the mean or median 
level" -- $13,622 or $12,836, whichever he defines it 
at -- "and anything above this would be higher and any­
thing below that would be lower." 

I have not seen anything on the AP wire in the 
way of a correction, I have not seen anything out of 
Plains, I have not seen anything outof the Carter campaign 
that indicates that he wants to change the sentence that 
says, "I would take the mean or median level of income 
and anything above this would be higher and anything 
below that would be lower." 

Now, I was certainly aware, everybody was aware, 
of the correction in the sentence up above in the 
interview, but it does not affect, as I understand it, 
you know -- if there is a retraction or a clarification 
or something, I have not seen it. 
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Q What is the President's reaction to this 
statement by Carter? 

MR. NESSEN: I think the President is not going 
to comment on this. This is something --

Q He just did. 

MR. NESSEN: Let me finish my sentence, Sarah. 

The President is not commenting on this. The 
voters will decide how they like the Carter tax plan. The 
President just outlined for you his tax plan. 

Q Well, he just made an implied rejoinder to 
this in his speech in the Rose Garden a few minutes ago. 

Q Do you want us to put in our stories that 
he was not talking about Certer out there? 

MR. NESSEN: I told you that he made indirect 
reference, I suppose, to the Carter statement by outlining 
his own tax views. 

Q Ron, at what level would the President's 
proposals affect tax cuts? You said median income. Where 
does he put that income? 

MR. NESSEN: I think in the Reader's Digest 
interview which came out, I guess today, he talked about 
lowering taxes of those who make anywhere from $8,000 
to $30,000. The heart of the President's tax program 
is to raise the personal exemption from $750 to $1,000 
and in addition to that, or the net result of that would 
be to give a tax cut $10 billion bigger than the 
Congress has approved. That has been out there. It has 
been on the record. The President made his tax proposal on 
January 19th of 1976 in a State of the Union speech. He 
called for an additional $10 billion tax cut above the 
$18 billion that Congress had passed a month before. 

He also called for changes in the tax laws, and 
one of those changes he called for was to raise the personal 
exemption for everybody, not just the people making above 
$12,836 or $13,622, but raise the personal exemption for 
everybody and thatwould affect most of those earning between 
$8,000 and $30,000, as you said. 

Q Ron, does the President consider that some-
one who earns 2-1/2 times the median family income is 
really a middle income taxpayer? 
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MR. NESSEN: I think it is a broad band between 
$8,000 and $30,000 he thinks should have their taxes 
reduced. 

Q Does he consider someone who earns $30,000 
a middle income tax bracket? 

MR. NESSEN: He believes from $8,000 to $30,000 
he said it before in speeches that he thinks 
have been paying a disproportionate share 
have their taxes cut. 

is a vast 
these people 
and ought to 

Q Ron, what was the President's reaction 
Saturday when he learned of this statement by Carter? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know that he really had time 
to sit down and read the transcript on Saturday. He 
was doing some other things~ had some visitors,and so forth, 
so I think it was --

Q Whenever he learned about it. 

MR. NESSEN: I think the President's own response 
to this and how he views it in the context of his own 
proposals he has just given you. 

Q Ron, is it the PPasident's assaesment, or 
someone in the White House, that Carter made a major blunder 
in this campaign? 

MR. NESSEN: I think, Marilyn, that the question 
of how this affects the voters and their view of Carter's 
proposals -- after all, this was the first specific 
detail of his so-called tax reform program that he has given 
and I must say, the AP reporter persisted in trying to 
get some details and did get some details. This is the first 
detail. I really think it is up to the voters to decide how 
they like it. 

Q I heard you quoted as saying it was a major 
blunder,by one of our colleagues on television. 

MR. NESSEN: I think that I probably said that 
to somebody over the weekend. 

Q Is that what you think it is? 

MR. NESSEN: I think I would rather leave 
it up to the voters to decide. 

Q Ron, Jimmy Carter has been making a lot out 
of the imprtance of a balanced budget during the past 
week, and on Thursday, if he asks President Ford what 
the sense is in proposing a tax cut in the year when he 
is $50 billion short on the budget, what is the President 
going to say? 
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MR. NESSEN: I don't know. I don't want to pre­
empt the President's views given on it during the debates. 

Q Do you have any reaction from the President 
to Carter saying that the President proposed a $10 billion 
increase in the broad-based taxes for the individual 
taxpayers while proposing a $6.5 billion cut for corporations? 

MR. NESSEN: I think the President has just given 
you his own views of his own tax programs and indirectly, 
the comment on these others. The President's tax program 
is, as you know, to cut people's taxes an additional 
$10 billion,which Congress apparently has not gone along 
with, to make it possible to pass on family farms and small 
businesses within the family without having them taken --

Q Excuse me --

HR. NESSEN: .That is the P~esident's tax program. 

Q I want to know, is he going to veto the 
tax bill which does not do that? 

MR. NESSEN: He has not finished analyzing 
the 1,600 pages of the tax bill and has not made up his 
mind yet. 

Q Does he think Carter is being less than 
forthright and truthful? Does he think Carter is not 
telling the whole truth when he says wbat I have just 
told you he said, that Ford's proposal is to increase 
individual taxes $10 billion and --

MR. NESSEN: Well, I told you that I was not 
going to answer campaign stump speeches and I maybe am 
getting dragged too far in that direction. 

Q I thought we did that over the weekend. 

Q What is the President's program on taxes 
on corporations? 

MR. NESSEN: The President had a program that 
was centered on tax cuts geared to creating additional 
jobs, and I will have someone sit down with you and outline 
it for you, if you like. 

Q So, does that mean a cut in corporate taxes, 
too? 

MR. NESSEN: A program geared to the creation 
of jobs. 

Q So, it would require a cut, right? 

MR. NESSEN: It is a program geared to the 
creation of jobs. 
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Q Wait, I am not financier. 

MR. NESSEN: Let me get somebody to sit down with 
you and outline the program, Marilyn. 

Q It is not that simple. 

Q Ron, the President just now, in the Rose 
Garden, was saying that the estate taxing had been improved 
significantly. The implication was that t~ this was in a 
bill that he was going to sign, he would not be telling them 
to veto it. 

MR. NESSEN: Lou, as I said last week, there are 
features of that bill which are largely the President's 
proposals, including that one. There are parts of that 
he thinks ought to go further. He thinks the individual 
tax cuts ought to be $10 billion greater. There are other 
parts of it that are enormously complicated. As I 
said last week -- look, nothing has changed since last 
Friday when I answered that same question. He will analyze 
1,600 pages 

Q He can take credit after having persuaded 
the Congress to significantly improve the estate tax 
provisions if he vetoes the bill, can't he? 

MR. NESSEN: He can certainly veto it and send_ 
it back saying, "Send me a bill I can sign." 

Q Isn't he planning to sign it before the 
debate Thursday, Ron? 

MR. NESSEN: John, when the analysis is completed 
and he has made his decision, I will let you know. 

Q Well, how far along are they on the 
analysis? 

MR. NESSEN: It is a 1,600 page bill, Sarah. 

Q I realize that, but how far along are they? 

MR. NESSEN: What page are they up to? I 
don't know what page they are on. 

Q Do you rule out signing this week? 

MR. NESSEN: Margaret says the text has not 
arrived here yet. 

Q Does that mean you are not studying it yet? 

MR. NESSEN: I think we are studying the 
Conference Committee report on it. 

Phil? 
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Q May I go back to this for just a minute, 
please? 

MR. NESSEN: Sure. 

Q Ron, is there any possibility that he may 
veto the bill because of the provisions against the Arab 
boycott? 

MR. NESSEN: As I said last Friday, and I will have 
to say it each day until the President makes his decision 
because nothing has changed on this, it is a 1,600 page 
bill with things he likes, things he does not like. He 
will weigh the pros and the cons and make his decision, 
but he has not made it yet. 

Q Have the analysts reached that provision? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know, Joe. 

Phil? 

Q On another subject, which I understand some 
people in the Ford White House believe is another Carter 
blunder, the interview in Playboy Magazine which surfaced 
today -- and I understand there is a great deal of 
discussion in the White House today about this -- what 
is the reaction to this? 

MR. NESSEN: There is no reaction. 

Q You don't feel that this is another blunder 
by Carter? 

MR. NESSEN: I am just not going to have any 
comment on it. 

Q You are all aware of it, aren't you? 

MR. NESSEN: There was an AP story that moved 
mid-morning at some point. 

Q I am sorry, I didn't hear the first part. 

MR. NESSEN: There was an AP story that moved 
mid-morning and like most stories that move on the 
wire, the people who follow the wires read the story. 

Q Is there a difference of opinion between 
the two candidates on this subject?' 

MR. NESSEN: What subject? 

Q As discussed in Playboy Magazine? 

MR. NESSEN: What subject is it? 
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Q What is the President's position on lust? 

MR. NESSEN: I am just not going to have any 
reaction or comment on the Playboy article. 

Q Ron, can you say why James Harris, ex-president 
of the NEA, was invited? 

answer. 

Q Ron, has the President had any reaction 

Q I didn't get the answer to my question. 

MR. NESSEN: I sent somebody \o get you the 
i 

Q Thank you. 
/ 

Q Ron, has the President had any answer to the 
Vice President's statement about his lack of obligation 
to Republican platform? 

MR. NESSEN: We answered that last week. I will 
get you the transcript. 

Q All right. How about the reaction to the 
Vice President's rather unusual gesture? Did you answer 
that? 

MR. NESSEN: Yes. 

Q Did the President have any reaction? 

MR. NESSEN: No. 

Q None? 

MR. NESSEN: Right. 

Q Ron, on the subject of bills that the 
President may or may not sign, has he made up his mind yet 
on either the anti-trust or the toxic substances legislation? 

MR. NESSEN: No, I don't think the toxic substances 
is far enough along to really get any clear feeling of how 
it is going to go. 

Q The conferees a~reed. 

' MR. NESSEN: I. am lagging behind on my knowledge 
of that. 
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Q How about anti-trust? That was sent to you 
last week. 

MR. NESSEN: Yes. We have not made a decision 
on anti-trust. 

Q Has the President made any comment on Secretary 
Kissinger's talks in Southern Africa inthe last day or two? 

MR. NESSEN: No. Kissinger is keeping him 
informed by telegram, by cable and the President is 
responding with his own suggestions· and directions. 

Q Is he encouraged .or discouraged? 

MR. NESSEN: I think I will juat stick to the 
words that Dr. Kissinger has used himself to describe 
the trip. 

Q Ron, on the Playboy thing, just 
once moDe, you are making no comment on it? Does that 
mean that you do not anticipate that anyone in the White 
House will refer to that or use it in any way during 
the campaign? 

MR. NESSEN: I just don't have any comment on 
Playboy Magazine. 

Q Yet, you mean, or at all? 

MR. NESSEN: Period. 

Q Does that mean no one will? 

MR. NESSEN: I cannot answer for every person 
in the White House. 

Q Is it White House policy not to talk about it? 

MR. NESSEN: I just don't have any comment on it, 
Marilyn. 

Q Do you think it was a worse blunder than 
the tax thing? 

MR. NESSEN: I think I learned a lesson since 
Saturday. 

Q Ron, you say you are not going to ma~e 
any comments on stump speeches and yet, you have described 
just recently the major blunder. I am wondering, what is 
your policy? Has it changed? 

MR. NESSEN: I think my saying it was a major 
blunder was a minor blunder. (Laughter) 
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Q Ron, can we get this'straight about Mr. 
Harris? I understand that you say here that he asked to 
come to the White House. 

MR. NESSEN: No. I sent so'mebody off to learn the 
background on that and come and report to you wfat it was. 

I 

Q Ron, there has been a 'iittle fus~ing between 
Israel and the United States over the oil explorations 
in the Fuls of Suez. 

MR. NESSEN: Yes. 

Q Is the vfuite House involved in this in any way? 

MR. NESSEN: The State Department has talked 
about that almost every day and I think Fred Brown is 
probably the world's greatest living expert on the 
oil drilling in the Gulf by now, and I think I will just 
leave it to him. 

Q What about the press conference with the Jewish 
leaders? 

MR. NESSEN: What press conference with Jewish 
leaders? 

Q The President is submitting to a press 
conference with them. 

MR. NESSEN: Where is that? 

Q Today at 5 o'clock. 

MR. NESSEN: Helen heard that the President was 
submitting to a news conference by Jewish leaders. My 
understanding is that it is the exact same format that he 
always follows at social events, which is mingle, shake 
hands. I had not heard he was going to take Q&A's. He 
does sometimes, informally, say he will be 

Q Press coverage is --

MR. NESSEN: Let me find out what the details of 
it are. 

Q Are you going to give us a list of those 
Jewish leaders? 

MR. NESSEN: If."you like it, I certainly will 
give it to you. 

Q Yes, please. 

Q Did he meet with the moonies over the 
weekend? 

MR. NESSEN: The moonies? No. 
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Q, Is that an answer on Harris? 

MR. NESSEN: On what? 

Q Harris? 

MR. NESSEN: Yes. I am reading it first. 

Harris talked to Bill Baroody on Saturday 
to give Baroody what his own, Harris' own, interpretation 
of the NEA endorsement was. This meeting was at Baroody's 
request; he asked to talk to Harris at his initiation. 
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Q .· At whose initiation? 

MR. NESSEN.: Baroody's initiation. Baroody 
called Harris to ask about this endorsement by the 
NEA. Baroody then,after he heard the interpretation, 
which you heard outside, then suggested that the 
President hear this interpretation firsthand and so 
an appointment was set up. 

Q Is the President disturbed that the NEA 
has endorsed Mr. Carter? 

MR. NESSEN: I am not going to comment on all 
the endorsements. 

Q Ron, who decided that a secretary at the 
EOB could be used to type up the statement which he gave 
out? 

~ Q t-lhat was the question? 

MR. NESSEN: If I understand the question, it 
was who decided that a statement by Harris could be typed 
by a secretary in the EOB? 

Q Yes. 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know it was typed by a 
secretary in the EOB. I think it was typed by a 
secretary in my office. 

Q It was by your office? 

MR. NESSEN: I think that is right, yes. 

Q How did Baroody know that --

Q Ron, could that be an election committee 
matter? 

Q Why didn't the President Ford Committee 
handle this event?. 

MR. NESSEN: Bill Baroody is the man who deals 
normally with special groups like the NEA and others and 
that he brings lots of folks in to see the President or the 
President asks him to arrange meetings or people call him 
and ask him to arrange meetings with the President. That 
is his function. 
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Q Ron, can we get a copy of the Harris 
statement? 

MR. NESSEN: I think Harris asked to have some 
of his thoughts typed out so that he could have them 
when he went out to talk to the reporters. 

Q May we have copies of that? 

Q It was typed at the White House? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know what Harris told you 
in person, but whatever it was, he used the typewritten 
sheet apparently for notes or memory or refreshment. I 
don't know. Did he read it word for word? 

Q He passed it out. 

Q May we have copies of the listing to you 
and not out there? 

MR. NESSEN: I am not going to pass out copies 
of Jim Harris' statement. 

Q Why were they typed here then? 

MR. NESSEN: As a courtesy to a· guest of the 
President. 

Q How did Baroody know he was a Republican? 

MR. NESSEN: I think Baroody has been in touch 
with Jim during his term as president of the NEA. 

Q Ron, did Baroody call Harris at the 
President's direction? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't think so, no. 

Q Wasn't this rather unusual for Baroody to 
be working on a problem like that on Saturday? 

MR. NESSEN: Most of us work six and usually 
seven days a week. 

Q How much politics is he doing from that 
office? 

MR. NESSEN: For the President? 
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Q No, Baroody. 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know. Whatever it is, it 
is proper. (Laughter) 

Q How do you know that? 

MR. NESSEN: Because he is following the 
President's direction. 

Q What is the President's direction? 

MR. NESSEN: Oh, come on, Helen. I will get 
you the stuff that we have talked about eight months 
ago on this. 

Q 
is it not? 

No, this is definitely a political move, 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know. Harris wanted to 
tell the President how he interpreted the endorsement as 
the past president of the NEA. 

Q Ron, I don't think we have had here at any 
time a question before on this. Baroody's job is what, 
public liaison, which the President in his own words has 
said he considers as important in his Administration as 
the Press Office under you and of the Congress. That is 
the President's own words. 

MR. NESSEN: That is correct. 

Q Now, could we have from you at this time, 
from somebody, what part the Baroody shop will play in 
this political campaign? 

MR. NESSEN: I don'tknow of any part, but I 
will certainly be glad to ask him to put that in his own 
words. 

Q The Harris thing was not political, no 
politics in the Harris thing? 

MR. NESSEN: I will go through the whole thing 
before you again, Clyde. 

Q Are you going to not answer it except what 
the --

MR. NESSEN: I am going to explain what 
happened. I think interpretation is probably your line 
of work rather than mine. 

Q My question is, was it political or not? 
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MR. NESSEN: I ean explaift why he came in, Pye. 
I can't interpret for you that kiftd ef analysis. 

Q 
President? 

Did he inte~pret the N~ vote to the 

MR. NESSEN: As a former president of the NEA 
and still active in its affairs, he did. 

Q 
by Playboy? 

Ron, has the President ever been interviewed 

Q I have a question I have been trying·to 
get in. Please? Thank you. 

Did the President read the letter from John 
Sears in the New York --

MR. NESSEN: I believe he did. 

Q Did he have any comment on it? 

MR. NESSEN: In its published form, you mean? 

Q Yes. 

MR. NESSEN: We have a policy, which I think is 
probably a good one, of not replying to open letters, 
and I think we will just follow that along. It is a 

.longstanding policy, and I think we will just follow it. 

Q What did he think of the advice of Mr. 
Sears? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't want to --

Q Has he contacted Mr. Sears? 

MR. NESSEN: Not that I know of, no. 

Q Is Mr. Sears working for him? 

MR. NESSEN: As you know, as we have said right 
along, the Reagan staff people and the Ford staff people 
are in contact and the Governor made a TV commercial 
last night on behalf of the President and the other 
Republican candidates. I think the White House is pleased 
with the contribution that Governor Reagan is making to 
his campaign. 
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Q Did the President talk to Reagan yesterday 
at any time? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't think he talked to him 
yesterday, no. 

Q Is the White House pleased? 

MR. NESSEN: No. 

Q In regard to this broadcast? 

MR. NESSEN: I don'tthink he talked to him 
immediately before the broadcast. · 

Q Is the White House displeased or disappointed 
that Governor Reagan said his schedule will not permit him 
to travel in several of the States where the PFC wanted 
him to travel? 

MR. NESSEN: No. The White House is pleased at 
the contribution he is making, speeches and commercials 
and other ways. 

Q Ron, this meeting that the President is 
having this afternoon is not atypical, it is under the 
normal course of events like he is having with other groups 
that come to him, is that right? 

MR. NESSEN: It is like the groups he has had 
coming here every day, I guess, since he started. 

Q Will you put out anything in writing on 
this or other ethnic groups that he is meeting with? 

MR. NESSEN: It is not normal, no. 

Q Ron, as I listened to the President's 
remarks on taxes out there, he was trying to portray 
himself as the champion of the middle income wage 
earner. 

MR. NESSEN: Right. 

Q I was wondering if perhaps this Adminis-
tration could build a case for that before the 
President's proposal for higher personal exemptions 
earlier this year; that is to say, what evidence does the 
public have that Gerald Ford was the champion of the 
middle income taxpayer prior to an election year? 
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MR. NESSEN: You may have missed the earlier 
portion of the briefing, but I would be happy to go 
over it again for you. I don't know how far you want to 
go back, but I think you recall the activities of 
December 1975 when the President vetoed the tax cut 
bill because he didn't think that it should be only a 
temporary six-month extension but rather he felt that 
it should be larger and should be permanent and Congress 
then sustained the veto and went on and passed acceptable 
legislation. 

On January 19, 1975, in the State of the Union 
speech, the President called for an extra $10 billion tax 
cut above and beyond the $18 billion that had been approved. 

Q That is what I referred to. 

MR. NESSEN: And the way that tax cut was broken 
down,I guess the primary effect on the middle income tax 
payer from $8,000 to $30,000 would have been by raising 
the personal exemption for each person from $750 to 
$1,000. 

Q Other than the election year --

MR. NESSEN: I would say the other major feature -­
I think the three points were these: 

One, the President wants $10 billion more in 
tax cuts than the Congress has gone along with. 

Two, he wants it directed specifically to those 
people earning between $8,000 and $30,000 by raising 
their personal exemptions. 

Third, he wants to help the family farmer and 
the small family business to pass on the farm, the 
business, down through the generations by easing the 
inheritance tax laws. 

Those are the three. 

Q All proposed in an election year? 

MR. NESSEN: No, I would not say so. I think 
December 1975; the State of the Union of 1976. 

Q Ron, is the President considering in the 
budget that is under preparation now --

MR. NESSEN: You know, if the Democratic 
Congress wants to get a credit for a tax cut in an 
election year, Walt, they would pass the extra $10 
billion that the President called for. 
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Q I was just wondering if you could perhaps 
go back to the President's record in Congress and when 
he ever initiated tax reform for the middle income 
American there. 

MR. NESSEN: I really don't think this is the 
proper forum for you and I to conduct a political debate, 
I guess that will be done on Thursday night. I am out­
lining for you the President's --

Q I am not debating. 

Q Just questioning, Ron. 

Q The warm-up before the heavies? 

MR. NESSEN: That is right, the warm-up act, 
Rodgers and Nessen. But, I am not standing in a hole, 
Walt, so that you will appear taller than me. 

Q Is the President in the consideration being 
given the next budget that is now under preparation by 
the Government considering new tax cuts? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know. I have not attended 
the preliminary meetings yet on the budget. 

Q What is the latest figure on the size of 
the White House staff? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know. I have not 
checked lately. 

Q Is it up or down? Have you checked on that? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know. The last time I 
checked it was certainly down, and I have not heard of it 
being added to greatly. In fact, a lot of people have 
been transferred away from here and over to the PFC, so 
I suspect it is lower still. 

Q Ron, is the President g1v1ng consideration 
to Secretary Simon's memorandum urging that something be 
done about balancing off the close cooperation that we 
have shown in the past with Iran, with maybe closer 
cooperation with Saudi Arabia so we can get the price of 
oil down in the future? 

MR. NESSEN: I am not familiar with the memo, 
Sarah. 

Q You are not familiar with this? 

MR. NESSEN: I am not. 
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Q Would you mind looking it up to see if the 
President has received it and see what the President's 
answer might be as to whether he is considering it and 
what he might do about it? 

MR. NESSEN: I will see if there is such a 
memo, yes. 

Q Ron, who is Larry Speakes -- I gather he 
is now working for Senator Dole. Whose payroll is he 
on, the PFC or the White House? 

MR. NESSEN: The PFC. 

Q Will the PFC pay back the cost of the 
typing, duplication and paper on the Harris statement 
that was done? I am serious about this. 

MR. NESSEN: No, they won't. 

Q How many political statements are done 
over in the Baroody shop? It seems to me if you have 
got a spending limit, you are not supposed to spend any­
thing except the $21 point whatever million. 

MR. NESSEN: As I said, it was done as a courtesy 
for a visitor to the President. 

Q What was the President's official capacity 
that required an interpretation of an endorsement of a 
political candidate? 

MR. NESSEN: Would you say that again? 

Q Yes. I just wonder what part of the 
President's official duties it is to bring people in at 
some Government expense and have them interpret political 
actions for himl 

MR. NESSEN: I think it is what the President 
has done from the beginning, which is an effort to see 
and hear and talk to and hear the ideas of as many 
Americans as possible and he does it for a wide range 
of groups. He has got the National Farm Credit Association 
here today. He has some Jewish leaders here today. He 
had a past president of the NEA here today. 

I think day in and day out on his schedule 
you will see that he has invited people here so that he 
can hear the views of individuals and representatives of 
groups representing a cross-section of the country. 
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Q Ron, you mentioned that the President did 
not talk to Governor Reagan before the broadcast last 
night. Did he talk to him after the broadcast? 

MR. NESSEN: I will have to check. I just have 
not kept track of that, Russ. 

Q Did anyone here help with the statement for 
the Catholic bishops when they were in? 

MR. NESSEN: Did anyone help them with it? 

Q Yes, providing any secretarial help? 

MR. NESSEN: My understanding is that they 
brought some already prepared statements with them, 
which they handed out as they arrived, and then, if 
you recall, they went into the Cabinet Room for about 40 
minutes to discuss among themselves what they wanted to 
say and then they came out here and I don't believe 
they had any written material. 

I resisted the demands that we put out a trans­
cript so that I think Pye would have asked me what authority 
there was for the White House to put out transcripts of 
these political groups. 

Q There is a bit of a differencee 

MR. NESSEN: I don't see it. 

Q The issue that brought the guy in according 
to what he said and what you said is to interpret a 
political enforcement by the NE~, and that sounds like a 
political meeting with the President to me. 

Q It does not sound like politics? 

MR. NESSEN: No. I told you the reason why he 
came was 

Q Did he have .difficulty understanding it? 

Q Didn't he understand the endorsement? 

MR. NESSEN: As I say, I think he has a pretty 
good record from the first time he came in here of hearing 
spokesmen for various groups and individual views, and I 
expect he will keep this up. 

Q If the current president of the NEA came 
in to explain the endorsement, would he also have the 
courtesy of having the White House --

MR. NESSEN: Type his notes for him? 
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Q Yes. 

MR. NESSEN: Be happy to. 

Q And distribute them widely, lots of copies? 

MR. NESSEN: Now wait a minute. We never 
distributed anything widely, Pye. 

Q Maybe just 50 or 60 copies. 

MR. NESSEN: As far as I know, there were no 
copies made in my office. 

Q He handed them out. 

Q That was not the statement he read. 

MR. NESSEN: He brought a long letter that he had 
written to the President and he brought copies with him, 
Pye. Let's keep the record straight now. I understand --

Q What was the President's --

MR. NESSEN: Just a second, Les. 

Q I thought you were finished, Ron. 

MR. NESSEN: Let's get all the things sorted 
out now. 

Q Absolutely. 

MR. NESSEN: The Catholic bishops brought with 
them a statement, all prepared, which they handed out 
as they came up the driveway, I understand. They met 
in the Cabinet Room. I can check what the hourly rental 
rate for the Cabinet Room is -- they used it for 40 
minutes. They came out here. I did not make a transcript 
because I knew that this was a matter of great interest 
to members of the press,using White House facilities to 
reproduce things for outside groups. 

Now, Mr. Harris came in today for the reasons 
you state, brought a letter to the President, reproduced 
and ready to hand out when he arrived. It was about a 
page and a half long. He came out. He talked to 
Baroody. I made him aware of Helen Thomas, I believe. 

Did you ask to see Harris when he came out, 
Helen? 

Q Yes, sir. 
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MR. NESSEN: I think you did and others, too. 

Bill Baroody told him about it and he said, "I 
would like to be able to pull my thoughts together. I 
would like to sort of boil it down." He edited a copy 
of the letter down, striking various parts of it, and 
said, "Is ther-e anybody here who can type this up for 
me so I can read it?" 

I thought it would be a courtesy to him to have 
one of my secretaries retype that. If there is an hourly 
rate for the two or three minutes it took her to type the 
four paragraphs and for the single sheet of paper, I 
would think the PFC probably would be willing to pick 
up the bill. 

Q I think we have a misinterpretation. That 
is not what he said. He said that the statement which 
he handed out was typed in the EOB. 

Q No, he didn•t say that. 

Q No, that is not what he said. 

MR. NESSEN: Do you have any other questions 
about financing, Pye? 

Q Yes. 

Q Is John Sears still on the Reagan staff? 
Is he one that the Ford campaign staff is in consultation 
with on the Reagan staff? 

MR. NESSEN: I don't know whether he is still 
on Reagan's staff or not. 

Q I am not quite sure I understand what you 
said because when I first asked you would the PFC pay 
back the typing cost, you said no. 

MR. NESSEN: Now that I realize that it has 
become one of the major issues, I think to resolve the 
problem we better have them pay for it. 

THE PRESS: Thank you. 

END (AT 1:06 P.M. EDT) 

#583 

II 




